
 

City of Newnan 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

Agenda for May 6, 2025 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting 
10:00 AM, Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers, City Hall  

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of Minutes 

 a. April 1, 2025, BZA Minutes 

3. Public Hearings 

 a. Public Hearing - 2 Mercantile Drive-Special Exception - 2025-02 

4. Other Business 

5. Adjourn 
  

Any questions prior to the meeting 
should be directed to the Planning and Zoning Department. 

Phone:  770-254-2354 
E-mail:   tdunnavant@newnanga.gov 

 

Page 1 of 79

mailto:%20tdunnavant@newnanga.gov


 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 04/01/2025 
 

1 

 

 

CITY OF NEWNAN 
Board of Zoning Appeals 

Meeting Minutes  
April 1, 2025 
10:00 a.m. 

 
Board Members in Attendance:   Skin Edge, Frank Flournoy, Sally Hensley, Kris Lovell, Ken 

Parker 
 
Board Members Absent:               Cliff Smith, Willie Walton 
      
Others in Attendance:       Tracy Dunnavant, Planning & Zoning Director 
 Chris Cole, Senior Planner 
 Dean Smith, Senior Planner 
     Brad Sears, City Attorney 
     Debbie Snider, Planning & Zoning Administrative Assistant  
     
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Edge called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 25 LaGrange Street.    
 
READING OF THE MINUTES 
 
Chairman Edge asked the Board if they had reviewed the January 7, 2025, meeting minutes. 
Hensley motioned to approve the minutes.  Lovell seconded the motion. 
 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 
 
Variance Request – 77 Millard Farmer Industrial Boulevard – Robert Dollar 2025-01 
 
Chairman Edge opened the public hearing for Variance Request 2025-01.  
 
Senior Planner, Chris Cole, gave the staff report on this property.  He stated the applicant 
intends to separate the two existing buildings with a new property line, reduce the side setback 
for 77-A from the required 30 feet to 16 feet, and reduce the rear setback for the proposed 
property line for Building 77-B from the required 40 feet to 16 feet. Mr. Cole added the 
applicant requests to split and buy the existing 77A with ±1.35 acres and combine it with his 
own adjoining property at 132 Werz Industrial Boulevard. He added the proposal is to continue 
with the same zoning and includes no new construction.  
 
Ms. Hensley questioned whether the applicant owns both buildings, which Mr. Cole confirmed.  
 

Page 2 of 79



 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 04/01/2025 
 

2 

 

Chairman Edge questioned whether the buildings would change visually. Mr. Cole stated that 
they would not. 
 
Mr. Cole stated that there have been no objections to date and staff recommends approval of 
this request with two conditions: 1) existing access to 77A should be retained 2) no storage 
containers should be stored outside on the ±1.35 acres. 
 
Mr. Flournoy asked if the applicant agrees to these conditions. Mr. Cole stated that the 
recommendations have not been discussed with the applicant, but Jim Mottola, representing 
the applicant, has indicated that the applicant is fine with the conditions. 
 
Riese Carden was sworn in by Brad Sears. Ms. Carden stated that an access easement could 
be added to go along with the property, to ensure the access stays open. Mr. Sears stated that 
the easement could be an additional condition.  
 
Mr. Cole went on to state that the application did not mention the use of outdoor storage/cargo 
containers for this site. He stated that due to residential views, the department felt it worth 
adding the second condition.  
 
Mr. Parker questioned whether the properties were zoned Heavy Industrial. Mr. Cole confirmed 
that they were. Mr. Flournoy asked if they would be allowed to have outside storage. Mr. Cole 
said yes.  Ms. Hensley inquired if there will be access from one building to the next. Mr. Cole 
confirmed this.  
 
Chairman Edge asked if anyone was present to answer questions.  
 
Robert Dollar was sworn in by Mr. Sears. He stated this would be an expansion to his 
company which needed additional space. Mr. Dollar also stated that additional heavy 
equipment storage would be needed and that the storage containers would be utilized.  
 
Chairman Edge made a motion to approve the request with the two recommended conditions 
and the added condition of proof of easement.  
 
Mr. Parker questioned why the Board was limiting Mr. Dollar’s ability to use his property. Ms.  
Dunnavant replied that there is a residential area behind this property that would be further 
impacted by stacked storage units which was not the use the applicant had specified in the 
application. Mr. Parker questioned whether the area could be utilized for outside storage. Ms. 
Dunnavant confirmed it could.  
 
Chairman Edge requested to amend his motion to include containers with no stacking.  
 
Mr. Dollar discussed stacking two high which would not exceed the building’s height. Mr. 
Parker inquired if the current owner could stack, which was confirmed. Chairman Edge asked if 
the current owner had a stacking limit. Ms. Dunnavant stated that there is not a limit for the 
current owner; however, their product was not storage containers. Ms. Carden stated that Ag 
Pro does not have a limit. Mr. Flournoy discussed a limit of two per stack. Chairman Edge 
questioned if that would be fair. Mr. Dollar stated that he would like there to be no limit, but he 
can work with two.  
 

Page 3 of 79



 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 04/01/2025 
 

3 

 

Mr. Flournoy requested to change the motion to limit the stacking of storage containers to two 
and have a recorded easement that allows access through Millard Farmer Industrial 
Boulevard.  
 
Mr. Dollar questioned how the stacking could be limited if the properties are combined. Mr. 
Sears stated that this was not a residential area in 1999 and 2000. Millard Farmer was 
industrial and some properties in the area were changed to commercial. Mr. Sears added that 
there were no original buffers because there previously were no residential areas. He said the 
Board could say no more than two high near a residential area. Mr. Parker stated he would be 
fine with that. Mr. Dollar stated that he would prefer to be unrestricted although he could see 
the reasoning. Mr. Sears stated that there is a community area between the subject property 
and the homes that could be considered a buffer. Mr. Dollar stated that his business would not 
encroach on the residential area due to the topography and steep hill.  
 
Chairman Edge asked if there was anyone in favor of or against the request that would like to 
speak. With no one coming forward, Chairman Edge closed the public hearing.  
 
 
Ms. Dunnavant asked Mr. Flournoy if he was withdrawing his motion. Mr. Flournoy stated that 
he was not withdrawing. Ms. Hensley seconded the motion. 
 
 

MOTION DENIED (2-3) Edge, Lovell, and Parker 
 
 
Mr. Parker made a motion to approve the variance without the storage container condition but 
with access to 77-A being retained through a recorded easement. Chairman Edge seconded 
the motion. 
 

MOTION CARRIED (3-2) Flourney, Hensley 
 
 
New Business 
 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Parker made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 10:35 a.m. and Lovell seconded the motion. 

 
MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 

 
 
_______________________________________________ 
Chairman Edge 

Page 4 of 79



Page 5 of 79



Page 6 of 79



Page 7 of 79



Page 8 of 79



Page 9 of 79



Page 10 of 79



Page 11 of 79



Page 12 of 79



Page 13 of 79



Page 14 of 79



Page 15 of 79



Page 16 of 79



Page 17 of 79



Page 18 of 79



Page 19 of 79



Page 20 of 79



Page 21 of 79



Page 22 of 79



Page 23 of 79



Page 24 of 79



Page 25 of 79



Page 26 of 79



Page 27 of 79



Page 28 of 79



Page 29 of 79



Page 30 of 79



Page 31 of 79



Page 32 of 79



Page 33 of 79



Page 34 of 79



Page 35 of 79



Page 36 of 79



Page 37 of 79



Page 38 of 79



Page 39 of 79



Page 40 of 79



Page 41 of 79



Page 42 of 79



Page 43 of 79



Page 44 of 79



Page 45 of 79



Page 46 of 79



Page 47 of 79



Page 48 of 79



Page 49 of 79



Page 50 of 79



Page 51 of 79



Page 52 of 79



Page 53 of 79



Page 54 of 79



Page 55 of 79



Page 56 of 79



Page 57 of 79



Page 58 of 79



Page 59 of 79



Page 60 of 79



Page 61 of 79



Page 62 of 79



Page 63 of 79



Page 64 of 79



Page 65 of 79



Page 66 of 79



Page 67 of 79



Page 68 of 79



Page 69 of 79



Page 70 of 79



Page 71 of 79



Page 72 of 79



Page 73 of 79



Page 74 of 79



Page 75 of 79



Page 76 of 79



Page 77 of 79



Page 78 of 79



Page 79 of 79


	1. Call to Order
	2. Approval of Minutes
	a. April 1, 2025, BZA Minutes
	April 2025 BZA Minutes Word


	3. Public Hearings
	a. Public Hearing - 2 Mercantile Drive-Special Except
	BZA Agenda Item-2 Mercantile Drive-resized


	4. Other Business
	5. Adjourn

